



# **DELIVERABLE**

Project Acronym:	
Grant Agreement number:	

GreeNET

527891

Project Title:

**Environmental Education through Enquiry and** Technology

## **D3.4 GreeNET Inventory Application**

**Revision: 1.0 [Final]** 

### **Authors**:

Nikos Manouselis, Giannis Stoitsis, Georgios Papoutsis, Konstantinos Iliopoulos, Katerina Galani (GRNET) Jad Najjar, Saleh Salem (EUMMENA)

Pr	Project co-funded by the European Commission within the ICT Policy Support Programme				
Di	ssemination Level				
Р	Public	X			
С	Confidential, only for members of the consortium and the Commission Services				

This project has been funded with the support of Lifelong Learning program of the European Union. This publication reflects the views only of the author, and the Commission cannot be held responsible for any use which may be made of the information contained therein.



## **Revision history**:

Revision	Date	Author	Organization	Description
0.1	15/6/2015	N. Manouselis, G.	GRNET	ТоС
		Stoitsis		
0.3	15/7/2015	N. Manouselis, G.	GRNET	First Draft,
		Stoitsis, G. Papoutsis,		Description of all
		K. Galani, K.		tools
		Iliopoulos		
0.8	30/7/2015	S. Saleh, J. Najjar	EUMMENA	Addition of moodle
				section
0.9	31/7/2015	G. Stoitsis	GRNET	Integrated pre-final
				version to review
1.0	4/9/2015	N. Manouselis, G.	GRNET	Final version
		Stoitsis		

## Statement of originality:

This deliverable contains original unpublished work except where clearly indicated otherwise. Acknowledgement of previously published material and of the work of others has been made through appropriate citation, quotation or both.

This project has been funded with the support of Lifelong Learning program of the European Union. This publication reflects the views only of the author, and the Commission cannot be held responsible for any use which may be made of the information contained therein.



## **Executive Summary**

The Deliverable D3.4 "GreeNET Inventory Application" of the GreeNET project aims to provide the final specifications and descriptions of the tools developed and used by the GreeNET project. The three tools described in this document are the following:

- 1. The GreeNET Inventory
- 2. The Best Practice Authoring Tool
- 3. The GreeNET Moodle instance

All of these tools are easily accessible through the GreeNET project website, which acts as the main point of reference for all information, tools and social media related to the project. In this way, website visitors and potential users of the GreeNET tools are provided with all the information and options that they may need.

These tools, as described in the following sections, are aimed at school teachers as well as other types of educators in environmental education that are interested in enriching their teaching material with high quality green Open Educational Resources (OER) and Best Practices on green topics, design their own interactive creativity activities using the Best Practice Authoring tool or reuse existing ones and engage their students in such activities and even create their own school portals using the School Portal Generator (SPG).

This document provides information on the aforementioned tools and the necessary links for potential stakeholders and end-users to get even more information. Two guides, one for the Best Practices Authoring Tool and one for the School Portal Generator are provided as Annexes to this document, aiming to provide all the required information to everyone wishing to use these tools.

## GreeNET

## Table of contents

EXE	CUTIV	VE SUMMARY	3
TAI	BLE OI	F CONTENTS	4
LIS	T OF F	FIGURES	5
1	INTF	RODUCTION	6
1	1	Scope	6
1	2	AUDIENCE	7
1	3	Abbreviations & Definitions	7
1	4	STRUCTURE	7
2	THE	GREENET WEBSITE	
3	THE	GREENET INVENTORY	10
4	THE	GREENET BEST PRACTICE AUTHORING TOOL	15
5	THE	GREENET MOODLE	17
5	5.1 5.1.1	FROM GREENET INVENTORY TO GREENET MOODLE 1 Login	
5	5.2	OPEN DISCOVERY SPACE (ODS)	
5	5.3 5.3.1	Statistics 1 User stats	21 21
	5.3.2	2 Overview statistics	22
5	5.4 5.4.1	Moodle Web 2.0 Collaboration Plugins 1 BigBlueButton	24 24
	5.4.2	2 Recordingsbn	25
	5.4.3	3 Cubic	25
	5.4.4	4 FB_Comments	26
	5.4.5	5 Forum_NG	26
	5.4.6	6 Group Self-selection	28
	5.4.7	7 MoodleBook	28
	5.4.8	8 Wiki Module	28
	5.4.9	9 OU_Wiki	29
6	THE	GREENET HUB	
7	CON	CLUSIONS	34
ANI	NEX A:	: BEST PRACTICE AUTHORING TOOL MANUAL	35
ANI	NEX B:	: SCHOOL PORTAL GENERATOR MANUAL	



## List of Figures

Figure 1.1: The GreeNET Best Practices Tool, Inventory and Moodle on the GreeNET website	6
Figure 2.1: The footer of the GreeNET project website	8
Figure 3.1: The GreeNET Inventory	10
Figure 3.3: The four steps for making use of the GreeNET Inventory	10
Figure 3.4: The GreeNET OER Finder	11
Figure 3.5: The creative engagement process of a Green Ideas event	12
Figure 3.6: The GreeNET Community in the ODS Web portal	13
Figure 3.7: The GreeNET School Portal Generator on the GreeNET website	14
Figure 4.1: The login page of the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool	15
Figure 4.2: A Best Practice uploaded in the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool	16
Figure 4.3: The authoring environment of the Best Practices Authoring Tool	16
Figure 5.1: The GreeNET Moodle landing page	17
Figure 5.2: GreeNET Moodle connection with GreeNET Inventory and ODS	18
Figure 5.3: Login page	19
Figure 5.4: Search	19
Figure 5.5: Browse all results	20
Figure 5.6: Resource page	20
Figure 5.7: GreeNET 4.3.1 Use stats	21
Figure 5.8: Full report describing every hit	22
Figure 5.9: Overview statistics	22
Figure 5.10: Users analysis	23
Figure 5.11: Country analysis	23
Figure 5.12: Language analysis	23
Figure 5.13: Adding the BigBlueButton functionality	24
Figure 5.14: BigBlueButton configuration page	25
Figure 5.15: Add a Forum	27
Figure 5.16: Forum configuration page	27
Figure 5.17: Add Wiki	29
Figure 5.18: Adding an OUWiki	30
Figure 6.1: The GreeNET Hub home page	31
Figure 6.2: The "Generate Ideas" section of the GreeNET Hub	32
Figure 6.3: The "Design Activities" section of the GreeNET Hub	32
Figure 6.4: The "Create your Portal" section of the GreeNET Hub	33



## **1** Introduction

### 1.1 Scope

This document aims to provide the final specifications and descriptions of the tools developed and used by the project. More specifically, the three tools described in this document are the following:

- 1. The GreeNET Inventory
- 2. The Best Practice Authoring Tool
- 3. The GreeNET Moodle instance

These three tools are accessible through the GreeNET project website, which acts as the main point of access for all the project's tools. In this way, access to the tools by their potential users is significantly facilitated.



Figure 1.1: The GreeNET Best Practices Tool, Inventory and Moodle on the GreeNET website

In the following chapters each one of these tools will be described and its basic functionalities will be explained in the form of short guidelines.



## 1.2 Audience

This report is addressed to GreeNET project partners, the European Commission, and the general public.

## 1.3 Abbreviations & Definitions

- LOM: Learning Object Metadata
- ODS: Open Discovery Space
- OER: Open Educational Resources
- SPG: School Portal Generator

## 1.4 Structure

**Chapter 1:** contains an overview of this document, providing its Scope, Audience, and Structure.

Chapter 2: Provides brief information on the GreeNET website

**Chapter 3:** describes the GreeNET Inventory.

**Chapter 4:** describes the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool.

**Chapter 5:** describes the GreeNET Moodle instance.

Chapter 6: describes the GreeNET HUB

**Chapter 6:** provides the conclusions of this document.

**Annex A:** Provides information on the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool.

**Annex B:** Provides guidelines on the use of the School Portal Generator.



## 2 The GreeNET website

The GreeNET project website (http://greenet.ea.gr) was designed and deployed in the context of the project's Work Package 6. The website acts as the main point of access to the aforementioned tools of the project, as it provides quick access to them. At the same time, the project website provides access to various sources of information about the project, as shown in Figure 2.1.

- **General information about the project** (<u>http://greenet.ea.gr/about-greenet</u>);
- Information about the project partners (<u>http://greenet.ea.gr/greenet.</u> <u>consortium</u>);
- A list of associated partners (<u>http://greenet.ea.gr/content/associated-partners</u>);
- The activities undertaken by each project partner (<u>http://greenet.ea.gr/greenet-activities</u>);
- The GreeNET Inventory (<u>http://hub.greenet.ea.gr/discovery</u>);
- Contact information (<u>http://greenet.ea.gr/content/contact-greenet</u>).

The top menu bar of the project website provides quick access to the aforementioned pages. At the same time, the project website provides useful information through the buttons available at its footer.

PARTNERS' AREA	BEST PRACTICES		GREENET MOODLE
CONTACT	ABOUT GREENET	GREENET ACTIVITIES	CONNECT
Dr. Sofoklis Sotiriou Ellinogermaniki Agogi - Research & Development Department Dimitriou Panagea St. Pallini, Attiki, GR.15351, Greece Tel: +30 210 8176 797 Fax: +30 210 60 32 795 e-mail: sotiriou@ea.gr	About Aims & Objectives	Activities in Greece Activities in Germany Activities in Austria Activities in Belgium Activities in Spain Activities in the UK	Facebook
The GREENET has received funding no.527891. This site reflects the of the information contained ther	g from the European Union Framework of t views only of the author, and the Commiss rein.	he Lifelong Learning Programme under grant a ion cannot be held responsible for any use wh	greement ich may be made Lifelong Learning Programme

Figure 2.1: The footer of the GreeNET project website

More specifically, the footer provides access to the following:

• **The project partners' working space** (restricted area; <u>https://fit-bscw.fit.fraunhofer.de/bscw/bscw.cgi/40304235</u>);



- The repository of educational Best Practices (<u>http://www.greenet-education.eu/greenet</u>);
- The GreeNET Inventory (<u>http://hub.greenet.ea.gr/discovery</u>)
- The GreeNET Moodle (<u>http://greenet.eummena.org</u>).

Last but not least, the footer contains the links to the project's social media channels, namely Facebook (<u>https://www.facebook.com/GreeNETproject</u>) and Twitter (<u>https://twitter.com/GreeNET\_Project</u>).

In this way, the project website ensures that visitors will have quick access to quality information about the project, its social media as well as to the tools developed by the project. These tools will be described in the following sections.



## 3 The GreeNET Inventory

The GreeNET Inventory is the main component / tool developed by the project and therefore has a core role in the related workflows and activities. It is a Drupal-based tool that allows the collection and retrieval, among others, of Best Practices. Through its modular approach, the GreeNET Inventory allows users to find quality OER on green topics, to learn how to author Best Practices, to engage participants of events in interactive activities and even to create their own portal with green OER from selected external sources. The Best Practices available through the GreeNET Inventory are provided by GreeNET project partners as well as from affiliated institutions in the areas of environmental education and green jobs counseling.



Figure 3.1: The GreeNET Inventory

The home page of the GreeNET inventory proposes a workflow/framework on how the existing GreeNET tools can be used by the end users in an organized way.



Figure 3.2: The four steps for making use of the GreeNET Inventory



More specifically, the GreeNET Inventory allows users to:

a) **Search for online resources in green issues.** This option helps users identify green Open Educational Resources (OERs) of interest. The GreeNET OER finder is available at: <a href="http://hub.greenet.ea.gr/discovery">http://hub.greenet.ea.gr/discovery</a>. This finder currently provides access to almost 4,000 resources that can be filtered by collection, language of the resource, educational context, resource type and expected end user role. These resources are described with metadata based on the widely used IEEE LOM standard for educational resources, a fact that enhances the interoperability of the finder with related external systems and at the same time increase the search capabilities of the discovery space.

This discovery space provides access to green OER in thirteen (13) different languages from seven (7) different collections so far. These resources are appropriate for various educational contexts but always focusing at school level, aiming at teachers, learners and other types of educators. The resources are of different types, such as lesson plans, enquiry-oriented activities, best practices, prototypes and pathways, among others, also including various types of multimedia files (such as videos and presentations).

The availability of these filters ensures that the tutors and educators that are searching for quality OER on green topics will receive a list of resources based on their specific criteria.

In addition, collections of the Open Discovery Service (ODS) Portal, such as the one available here: <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/search/site/garden</u>, can be used as additional sources of green OER.

NOME     DISCOVER OER     GENERATE IDEAS     DESIGN ACTIVITIES     CREATE YOUR PORTAL       OTIC: // Discovery       Discovery       Discovery       SEARCH       SEARCH       SEARCH       Collection       Language       Context       Resource Type       Resource Type     Rights:       End User Role     View More       Creencek Central railway station       2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes       Keywords:     edu, object/regreencek, central, railway, station, 661472       Rights:     Context		Greener.	<b>K</b>
Discovery         Discovery         Search here         Active Facets         Collection         Collection         Search for "\$" returned total: 3982 results         Language         The return distribution of the variance gamma process         2014-01:00 Educational Object LA Flor Yes         Keywords:         edu, object/return, distribution, variance, gamma, process, 52655         Rights:         Context         Greenock Central railway station         2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes         Keywords:         edu, object/regreenced, central, railway, station, 661472         Rights:	IOME DISCOVER OER G	ENERATE IDEAS DESIGN ACTIVITIES CREATE YOUR PORTAL	
Discovery         Search here         Active Facets         Collection         Language         Context         Resource Type         Rights:         End User Role         Conserver         Context         Resource Type         Rights:         Context         Responder         Rights:	ome / Discovery		
Search here       SEARCH         Active Facets       Active Facets         Collection       Search for "*" returned total: 3982 results         Language       The return distribution of the variance gamma process         Context       Resource Type         Resource Type       Rights:         End User Role       View More         Constant       Greenock Central railway station         209-01:0.0 Educational Object MACE Yes       Keywords:         edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472       Rights:	Discovery		
Search here       SEARCH         Active Facets       Active Facets         Collection       Search for "\$" returned total: 3982 results         Language       The return distribution of the variance gamma process         Context       Z014-01:00 Educational Object LA Flor Yes         Keywords:       Keywords:         End User Role       View More         Context       Greenock Central railway station         2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes       Keywords:         edu, object/egreenock, central, railway, station, 661472.       Rights:			
Active Facets       Collection       Search for "*" returned total: 3982 results       Language       The return distribution of the variance gamma process       Context       Keywords:       Resource Type       Rights:       End User Role       CourtStandn       Context       Generation       Generation       Generation       Greenock Central railway station       2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes       Keywords:       edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472.       Rights:		Council Journ	
Collection       Search for "*" returned total: 3982 results         Language       The return distribution of the variance gamma process         Context       2014.01:00 Educational Object LA Flor Yes         Keywords:       Resource Type         End User Role       View More         Clour Search       Greenock Central railway station         209-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes       Keywords:         Clour Search       Greenock central, railway, station, 661472         W Tweet (o)       Rights:		Search here Search	
Language     The return distribution of the variance gamma process       Context     Regource Type       Resource Type     edu, object/return, distribution, variance, gamma, process, 52655       Rights:     edu, object/return, distribution, variance, gamma, process, 52655       Resource Type     Rights:       End User Role     View More       Clear Search     Greenock Central railway station 2009- 01:00 Educational Object MACE Ves       Clear Search     Greenock central, railway, station, 661472       W twwatt (a)     Rights:	Collection	Active Facets	oculto
Canguage       The return distribution of the variance gamma process 2014 01:00 Educational Object LA Flor Yes Keywords:         Resource Type       Rejords:       edu, object/return, distribution, variance, gamma, process, 52655         Rights:       View More         Court Starcen       Greenock Central railway station 2009- 01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes         Keywords:       edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472         Witte:       Rights:	Lanuar		esuits
Context         Keywords: edu, object/return, distribution, variance, gamma, process, 52655           Resource Type         Rights:           End User Role         View More           CourSearch         Greenock Central railway station 2009- 01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes           Citize (a)         edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472.           wTwwet (?)         Rights:	Language	The return distribution of the variance gamma process 2014-01:00 Educational Object LA Flor Yes	
Resource Type     Resource Type       End User Role     View More       CourSearch     Greenock Central railway station 2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes       Clum Search     Servenock, central, railway, station, 661472.       Witter     Rights:	Context	Keywords:	
End User Role         View More           CourSearch         Greenock Central railway station 2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes         Keywords:           Citize (a)         Keywords: edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472         Rights:	Resource Type	Rights:	
Citer Search         Greenock Central railway station           2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes         Citer Search           If them (a)         Keywords:           w Tweet (a)         edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472           Rights:         Rights:	End User Role		View More
2009-01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes           Classifier         Annual Control           System         a         Keywords:           System         a         edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472           System         a         Rights:	Clear Search	Greenock Central railway station	
Image: Second and the second		2009- 01:00 Educational Object MACE Yes	
Kignts:	Tweet 0	edu, object/greenock, central, railway, station, 661472	
	International sector 1 ≥ 1.	Rights:	

Figure 3.3: The GreeNET OER Finder



b) **Get inspiring ideas through the organization of creative activities in their schools.** In this section, users are introduced to the concept of the Green Ideas events, which are interactive and engaging workshops that explore ways in which green innovation may be empowered by education and technology. These events are organized in the form of dynamic workshops that use the design-thinking approach to innovate new ideas with actionable next steps. Within Green Ideas, collaboration and ideation happen in stages (harvest requirements, plant seeds, cultivate ideas, blossom & thrive). Throughout the experience, participants engage in activities that accelerate meaningful collaboration. The following graph describes the creative engagement process in a Green Ideas event. You can find more information at http://greenet.ea.gr/content/generate-ideas, while the website of Green Ideas is available at http://greenideasproject.org/green-ideas.



Figure 3.4: The creative engagement process of a Green Ideas event

c) **Get guidance through the authoring process of best practices for the classroom.** This option allows users of the GreeNET community to receive more information on the design of educational activities based on Best Practices. In this section, users are provided with a checklist that allows them to check how compliant their activity is with the concept of Best Practices and on top of that to access the manual of the Best Practice Authoring Tool, that is described in the next Chapter.



fome   GREENET: Sharir	ng Enviromental Education	al Resources			
GreeNET	GREENET: SRESOURCES	Sharing Envi	iromental Edu	icational	Managed By: sofoklis
<b>\$</b>	<u>Stee</u>	NÊT	• 3		Katerina Riviou
round the world, awarer ignals an educational cri competences necessary i eachers may lack the ne itudents do not comprel icience studies and care	ness is growing that we liv isis, among others, that di for active citizenship and s iccessary skills needed to en hend the applicability of sc ers.	e on a planet with limited emands new ways of thinl ocial cohesion, as well as ihance students'A key ref ience studies to future ca	resources. The apparent ^p king and calls for support to a turn towards green profes lective problem-solvers, and reer choices, thus being he	lanetary emergency' these key sions. What is more, at the same time, sitant towards green	Created on: 03.04.2015 Last visited: 31.08.2015
REENET aims to corres ollecting and exchanging reen careers counseling amework, Moreover, a E	pond to this increasing rea g exceptional good practic that exist in various EU c uropean network of teach	cognition, through the de es and their respective to ountries, in accordance w ers shall be formed and m	velopment of an appropriate ols in the area of environme ith the "Education and Trair notivated through specific er	scheme for ntal education and ning 2010" ducational actions,	Network of related communties
ontests, and summer s o cutting-edge approact	chools, to develop the com hes in environmental educ	petencies necessary in or ation.	der to properly educate the	ir students according	ft <mark>%</mark> in@
lave a look to the unique Visit the project's <u>websit</u> y	e <u>GREENET Best Practices</u> B	from different schools acr	oss Europe.		
Tags: enviromental educ	ation, green resources				
& Membe	rs:9	Events: 0	Discussion	ıs: 0	
P					

Figure 3.5: The GreeNET Community in the ODS Web portal

Through a user community hosted in the Open Discovery Space (ODS) Web portal, the GreeNET users and other stakeholders interested in using the project's tools and approach can initiate and participate in discussions related to the design of educational activities based on the Best Practices of the project (<u>http://www.greenet-education.eu/greenet</u>) or the ones created by the users themselves. Users are also provided with a login link, which can be used for accessing the admin interface of the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool (inventory). More information about the tool can be found in Chapter 4 of this document as well as in Annex A.

d) **Create their own school portal on green ideas and projects sharing locally or in public the outcomes of their work.** Through the use of the School Portal Generator (SPG; <u>http://spg.latramis.com</u>), users are allowed to create portals that provide access to selected green OER that are specified by the user. The GreeNET School Portal Generator is available here: <u>http://hub.greenet.ea.gr/node/5</u>.





Figure 3.6: The GreeNET School Portal Generator on the GreeNET website

A video tutorial on the use of the School Portal Generator is available through YouTube: <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ppo0luWBjM8</u>.

The School Portal Generator manual is available in the Annex B of this document.



## 4 The GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool

One of the aims of the GreeNET project is to create an inventory of Best Practices related to sustainable development and environmental protection. In order to help green educators design and create innovative Best Practices, an online software tool that guides them through each step of the best practice design has been developed by the project. In this context, the Best Practice Authoring Tool provides the user environment for creating these Best Practices and at the same time a digital repository of educational scenarios and digital resources.

The resources created and stored in the software tool can be easily searched, retrieved and used into a new or existing best practice. In addition, authors using of the Best Practice Authoring Tool are allowed to upload and store their own resources to be used in their Best practices. Apart from that, the tool allows users (but not authors) to search for and use educational scenarios as well as to play with digital resources.

GreeNET best practice inventory
Log In Go to Home Page   Lost your password?
Username *
Password *
Remember Me?
Log In

The GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool is available at <u>http://greenet-education.eu/greenet</u>

Figure 4.1: The login page of the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool

Each one of the best practices available through the tool is described with educational metadata and contains one or more resources that are uploaded by the author of the best practice or resources already uploaded in the tool by other authors.

## GreeNET



Figure 4.2: A Best Practice uploaded in the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool

The authors of Best Practices are provided with credentials that allow them to access the authoring interface of the tool. This environment allows authors to create Best Practices using the tool, making use of resources and providing the necessary metadata for the description of the Best Practices.

Add Best Pract	ice		
			<u>Best Practices</u> > Add Best Practice
Best Practice Title		a	
Description		,b	
Language	English 👻	c	
Select Best Practic	ce Template		
			Add a Best Practice or <u>Cancel</u>

Figure 4.3: The authoring environment of the Best Practices Authoring Tool

You can find additional information about the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool in the Best Practice Authoring Tool manual – see Annex A.



## 5 The GreeNET Moodle

The integration of the GreeNET Best Practice Repository, which provides access to both Best Practices and related resources, in the Moodle web site allows users of GreeNET to access all Best Practices introduced into the GreeNET inventory in a Learning Management System that helps teachers add and access learning resources and activities. On the other hand, the connection of GreeNET Moodle with the Open Discovery Space ODS repository enables GreeNET users to have access to a massive number of relevant learning resources of ODS from within the GreeNET Moodle Learning System (http://greenet.eummena.org); giving users many choices of relevant resources that they may add to the Best Practices collected by GreeNET community during the project life time; see figure below of GreeNET Moodle Landing page.

Home About Do Home	wnloads Contact	eNE		You are not logged in. (I	Login)
🔕 NAVIGATION 🛛 🗊 💵	COURSE CATEGORIES			CALENDAR	<b>R</b> 18
Home				<ul> <li>September 2015</li> </ul>	>
Courses	GREEK	ENGLISH (23)	DEUTSCH (19)	Sun Mon         Tue         Wed         Thu         Fri           1         2         3         4           6         7         8         9         10         11           13         14         15         16         17         18           20         21         22         23         24         25           277         28         29         30         30	i Sat 5 1 12 3 19 5 26
	SPANISH (22)	NEDERLANDS			_
		You are not logged in. (Login)			

Figure 5.1: The GreeNET Moodle landing page

The figure below demonstrates the framework of the integration of the three systems.

- 1) The GreeNET Moodle is connected with the GreeNET Inventory via a software interface that assures the import of all content and metadata (based on the IEEE LOM Standard; for more information see deliverable D3.1) from the inventory (indexation portal with experts-introduced best practices) into the GreeNET Moodle Learning Management System (LMS) that is open to any interested users in learning, adding feedback and collaboration activities or content related to the Best Practices.
- 2) The GreeNET Moodle is connected with the ODS repository via web services on both sides of the systems. In addition, a Web 2.0 widget allows users to interact with the learning recourses harvested from the ODS into the GreeNET Moodle LMS. This widget provides users with recommendations on learning resources



from the ODS repository, that are relevant to the best practice they are working in the LMS. The widget supports rating and feedback of learning resources.

The coming sections demonstrate the features supported in the integration introduced above.



Figure 5.2: GreeNET Moodle connection with GreeNET Inventory and ODS

## 5.1 From GreeNET Inventory to GreeNET Moodle

All courses in GreeNET Moodle are imported from the GreeNET inventory and classified into the GreeNET Moodle based on the following:

- A. Languages: every language from GreeNET inventory has been imported in a single Moodle category. So, the user goes into category with the selected language to see all resources created using this language.
- B. Topics: all resources have been classified to Moodle courses based on the title of this resource; this can make the browsing easier for the learner.

### 5.1.1 Login

Users who have a username on the GreeNET Moodle site, can login using their username and password. If they are not registered users, they can click on (login as a guest) button at the bottom of login page. However, the guest users will be logged in to GreeNET Moodle automatically as guests.







Figure 5.3: Login page

## 5.2 Open Discovery Space (ODS)

Building a Moodle block allows Moodle users to search, browse and share all ODS resources without leaving the GreeNET Moodle. This block contains the following features:

**Search:** The default search word is the name of the current course; however, the user can type any other keyword to search for learning resources from the ODS repository.

OPEN DISCOVERY 🖬 💵 SPACE
water
Results:(0 - 10 of 4154) Using water cleverly. Hotel "Casa Camper" in Barcelona takes on a lighthouse function: water recycling despite low water prices
Loading
Loading

Figure 5.4: Search



**Browse all results:** The search engine returns the first 10 results in the same block; however, the user can load more results by choosing the "See all results" option. Then the user can see all result comes back from the ODS repository with pagination (10 results per page).



Figure 5.5: Browse all results

**Resources:** once a user clicks on any learning object from the search results, the following window appears.

choice can e	ncourage positive e	environmenta	l behaviour
Encouraging int towards the en- important area and Kate Disney charge for plast successfully en- implications for their behaviour of policy-makin of a charge for encouraged pro- encouraged pro-	lividuals to change thei ironment is an increasis of policy-making. Juliar find that the introduct ic bags in Marks and Sp ouraged pro-environmental policy. I towards the environmental lastic bags in Marks an environmental behavi olicy. oaiseprints.lse.ac	r behaviour ngly 1 Le Grand ion of a sencer shops ent la behaviou Encouraging inc wat is an increas Kate Disney finc d Spencer shop our and explore suk-32291 GE En	r and explore the dividuals to change ingly important area d that the introductions successfully e the implications for ivironmental Science
View resource /var/odsHarves View Resource Yes application.	tedRepositories/old/O Tuesday, May 15, 2012- ( pdf » hide	PENSCOUT_HE 02:00 Educatio	EALTHY/oai_eprints.l nal Object OpenScou
View resource /var/odsHarves View Resource Yes application ☆☆☆☆☆☆	tedRepositories/old/O Fuesday, May 15, 2012- ( pdf » hide	PENSCOUT_HE 02:00 Educatio	EALTHY/oai_eprints.l nal Object OpenScou View Resource
View resource /var/odsHarves View Resource Yes application ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆	tedRepositories/old/O ruesday, May 15, 2012- ( pdf » hide nent	PENSCOUT_HE 02:00 Educatio	EALTHY/oai_eprints.l nal Object OpenScou View Resource
View resource /var/odsHarvei View Resource Yes application ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ Addtional Comm	tedRepositories/old/O luesday, May 15, 2012- ( pdf » hide nent	PENSCOUT_HE	EALTHY/oai_eprints.l nal Object OpenScou View Resource
View resource /var/odsHarvez View Resource Yes application ☆ 술 ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆ Addtional Com Share my comr Choose Section	tedRepositories/old/O ruesday. May 15, 2012- ( pdf = hide nent	PENSCOUT_HE	EALTHY/oal_eprints.l
View resource /var/odsHarves /ves application 같 숲 ☆ ☆ ☆ Addtional Com Share my com Choose Section Summary	tedRepositories/old/O ruesday. May 15, 2012- ( pdf = hide nent nent <u>nent</u>	PENSCOUT_HE	ALTHY/oai_eprints. nal Object OpenScou View Resource

Figure 5.6: Resource page



Then the user will have the following options:

- 1. **Rate** the learning object.
- 2. Add a **comment** to the learning object.
- 3. **Import** this learning object from the ODS directory and add it to your course as a resource.
- 4. Visit this object in **ODS** site.
- 5. Share this object in your social account, Facebook, Twitter, etc...

#### 5.3 Statistics

Statistics help the administrator to monitor the site and develop it in future. In the GreeNET Moodle there are two types of Moodle plug-ins that produce statistics charts and reports.

#### 5.3.1 User stats

This Moodle block allows the site administrator to monitor all actions for any registered user. Simply, choose one user and the period of time to see when this user logged to the site and where he spends his time.



Figure 5.7: GreeNET 4.3.1 Use stats

By clicking on "show details", you'll got a full report describing every hit.



Saleh Salem		
Observable classes	Time elapsed	Hits
sessions		
	now	
News forum	22 mins 24 secs	0
classroom 1	18 mins 27 secs	0
ForumNG 1	16 mins 18 secs	0
	4 mins 53 secs	
OU wiki test1	44 mins 6 secs	0
user		
	2 mins	
coursetotal		
News forum	56 mins 31 secs	13
	15 mins	
Plastic Bags	34 mins 37 secs	n
course		
	1 hour 38 mins	
page		
STEVEN HOLL ARCHITECTS	6 mins 3 secs	2
activities		
Plastic Bags	6 mins 3 secs	2

Figure 5.8: Full report describing every hit

#### 5.3.2 Overview statistics

This option can be access through Site administration >> Report >> overview statistics.

This Moodle plug-in produces various site and course report charts.



Figure 5.9: Overview statistics



A. Users: This feature produces a chart describe the number of users per the time.



#### Users logging in



B. **Country**: produces a chart to describe the users depends on his country(country activity).

#### User countries





C. Language: produces a chart to show the usage for each language in the site.

#### User preferred languages



Figure 5.12: Language analysis



## 5.4 Moodle Web 2.0 Collaboration Plugins

There are other Moodle plugins that may be summarized in the following sections:

### 5.4.1 BigBlueButton

BigBlueButton (<u>http://bigbluebutton.org</u>) is an open source web conferencing system for distance education. It supports real-time sharing of slides (including whiteboard), audio, video, chat, and desktops. It also supports the recording of lectures for later playback, specifically the slides + audio + chat.

This module enables users to:

1. Create multiple activity links to on-line sessions within a course

2. Restrict students from joining a session until a teacher (moderator) joins the session

3. Launch BigBlueButton in a separate window

4. Create a custom welcome message that appears at the top of the chat window when joining the session

5. Specify join open/close dates for the session that appears in the Moodle's calendar

6. Record a session (requires BigBlueButton 0.8 or later)

7. Access and mange recordings (requires installation of recordingsbn)

To add BigBlueButton. you just add a new activity or resource,



Figure 5.13: Adding the BigBlueButton functionality

Then start to specify the BigBlueButton as follows:



#### O Adding a new BigBlueButtonBN to Topic 20

General settings	
Virtual classroom name*	
Welcome message 🗿	
Open BigBlueButton in a new window	
Students must wait until a moderator joins	
Schedule for sessions	
Join open	15 🛒 June 👻 2013 😴 10 😴 30 🛒 🗖 Enable
Join closed	15 June 2013 10 30 Enable
Record settings	
Record	
Description of recorded session	
Duration 👔	4 hours 💌
Common module settings	
Group mode 👔	No groups
Visible	Show 💌
ID number 🕐	
	Save and return to course Save and display Cance

#### Figure 5.14: BigBlueButton configuration page

#### 5.4.2 Recordingsbn

This recordingsbn (<u>http://moodle.org/plugins/view.php?plugin=mod recordingsbn</u>) module works with the bigbluebuttonbn module to let you view and manage your BigBlueButton recordings within a course. This module lets you give students access to the recordings, publish/unpublish recordings, and delete the recordings. To use recordingsbn, you need to install it alongside bigbluebuttonbn.

In short: the bigbluebuttonbn module lets you create BigBlueButton sessions from within your course, recordingsbn lets you view and manage the BigBlueButton recordings from within your course.

#### 5.4.3 Cubic

Cubic (<u>https://moodle.org/plugins/view/theme\_cubic</u>) is a new theme for Moodle 2.3. Its objective is to provide users with a more user-friendly interface, which provides several forms of social awareness and some new concepts. On the top of every Moodle page, this theme introduces a user bar which provides users with several menus. Each of these menus contains information about the current user courses, activities, notifications, events, messages, settings, and others.



This theme also provides a settings page where you can change several properties like logos, colors, system name, and others. On this page you can also remove the institutions and applications menus from the user bar in case you don't want to use them.

### 5.4.4 FB\_Comments

This plugin is used to add Facebook like and comment box to your Moodle. It aims to make Moodle more user friendly by allowing users to like or comment on specific subjects and courses.

#### 5.4.5 Forum\_NG

This is a Moodle activity plugin which is an alternative option to the standard Forums within Moodle. Like the OU Wiki module, this can sit alongside the original forum activities as it is completely independent. There will be times you may want to use one or both systems depending on the use case.

The forum has some key extra features which make it quite a nice tool to use including:

- 1. Easy to use Ajax driven User Interface
- 2. Unique discussion view, with expanding posts
- 3. A friendly star system for ratings.
- 4. Sticky Posts
- 5. Discussion locking
- 6. Multiple file attachments
- 7. Flagging posts
- 8. Private one to one discussions between individual students and teachers
- 9. Draft options for posts

When creating the forum, the teacher is given options to select the forum type. Unlike the standard Moodle forum, there are only two types available - The standard forum or the Study Advice (which is the one to one with student/teacher format). The teacher can also set ratings, limit posts times, remove old discussions and limit users to a number of posts per day.

To add a Forum\_NG, from the activities menu, choose the Forum\_NG:



	Add	an activity or resource
ACT	IVITIES Assignment BigBlueButtonBN Chat Choice Database External Tool Forum ForumNG Glossary	ForumNG is a replacement for standard Moodle forum with most of the same features plus additional ones and a more dynamic user interface. NG stands for 'Next Generation'.

Figure 5.15: Add a Forum

Then choose the configurations for the Forum:

General	
General	
Forum name*	
Forum type 🕐	Standard forum for general use
Forum introduction	Font family * Font size * Paragraph * 🔊 🖓 🏦 🕼
	B Z U AR X, X ≣ ≣ ≣ 3 2 2 10 10 A + 2 - >1 14
	田田津都 🕺 🍕 🍩 🖉 📱 🛛 Ω 🗹 🛲 💝 -
	Path: p
Subscription (?)	Evenyone can choose to be subscribed
·····	
waximum attachment size	500KB

## Adding a new ForumNG to Topic 29

Figure 5.16: Forum configuration page



## 5.4.6 Group Self-selection

This activity allows students to select the group they want to be members of. You can set up this activity to enable the students to self-select groups from either all groups or a specific grouping of groups. You can set limits on the group memberships and require a global password to complete the selection process. You will need to have the groups and groupings already created defined.

This is a very useful tool for getting students into different streams of work.

### 5.4.7 MoodleBook

Moodlebook is a three-column that emulates the look and feel of Facebook. It improves usability by shifting setting blocks to top of the page, so called "Moodle awesome bar".

For developers, It transfers the performance info into a colorful floated bar at bottom of the page, which brings the performance awareness as well as improves usability.

#### 5.4.8 Wiki Module

A wiki is a collection of collaboratively authored web documents. Basically, a wiki page is a web page that everyone in your class can create together, right in the browser, without needing to know HTML. A wiki starts with one front page. Each author can add other pages to the wiki by simply creating a link to a page that doesn't exist yet.

A wiki is indeed a fast method for creating content as a group. It's a hugely popular format on the Web for creating documents as a group. There is usually no central editor of a wiki, no single person who has final editorial control. Instead, the community edits and develops its own content. Consensus views emerge from the work of many people on a document.

In Moodle, wikis can be powerful tools for collaborative work. The entire class can edit a document together, creating a class product, or each student can have their own wiki and work on it with you and their classmates.

Add a Wiki from the activities menu, then specify the configurations:



### # Adding a new Wiki to Topic 2

seneral	
Wiki name*	
Wiki description*	Font family 🔻 Font size 💌 Paragraph 💌 🖃 🖽 🏠 🛄
	B / U A& ×, × ≡ ≡ ≡ 🥩 🖉 🛱 🎲 🛕 - 💇 - >1 14
	ΞΞΞψ ≇ ∞ ∞ ∞ ∞ <b>Σ 및 Ν Ω 11</b> איזת ♥ -
	Path: p
Display description on	
course page 🕐	
Viki settings	
First page name* 🕢	First page name
Wiki mode @	
WIKI HIUUP 🕐	
Default format 🕐	HTML 💌
Force format 🍞	

Figure 5.17: Add Wiki

#### 5.4.9 OU\_Wiki

This is a Moodle activity plugin which is an alternative wiki option within Moodle. It has been designed specifically with teaching and learning in mind and not as a bestpossible-wiki option such as MediaWiki. The key to this wiki is simplicity and it has only one of the special wiki-syntax options available the syntax for linking.

When you go into editing a course, it is just another option on the Add Activity drop down. The wiki settings for the OU wiki are more detailed than for the normal Moodle wiki. However, the OU Wiki has a lot more options. Firstly, you can set a collaborative wiki for the course, or a group or just have the individual work on their own wiki. Secondly, a user can be given rights to add inline annotations to the wiki.



A nice feature is the edit timeout. When two people want to edit the same page in a wiki, it is locked to one of them. This allows setting a timeout that will release auto-submit the person who is editing saving their changes and unlocking it.

To add an OUWiki, from the activities menu, then choose the configurations:

General	
Name*	
Wiki description	Font family 🔻 Font size 🝸 Paragraph 💌 🔿 😋 🏦 🎲 🗐
	B / U A& X₂ X² ≣ ≣ ≣ 🧳 ∠ 🔯 🕼 🛕 • 💇 • >1 14
	田田寺寺 🕬 🍥 💁 🛔 🕘 Ω 🗹 🖬 🗮 -
	Path: p
Display description on	
course page 🕐	
Wiki settings	
Cub wikis @	
SUD-WIKIS 🕐	Single wiki for course
Annotation system (?)	No 💌
Time allowed for edit 🕐	No timeout 💌
Allow editing from 🗿	18 💌 June 💌 2013 💌 🗉 Enable
Prevent editing from 🕐	18 v June v 2013 v Enable

#### Adding a new OU wiki to Topic 24

#### Figure 5.18: Adding an OUWiki

The OU wiki sets itself up as a simple wiki with clear goals, and it delivers on them all. It is easy to use for teacher and student whilst also having the option of annotation and grading which are very good for teaching practice and feedback. It does not have all the options of the Moodle wiki and so there will be times you will use the standard Moodle.



## 6 The GreeNET Hub

As described earlier, the GreeNET website currently acts as the point of reference for the project's tools and resources, providing easy access to them. Throughout the lifetime of the project, this was a convenient way to lead the project website visitors to the tools that may be of interest to them, in order for them to access the Best Practices of the project as well as related quality green OER, create their own Best Practices and design interactive activities and even create their own portal.

At the same time, an updated version of these services was designed, taking advantage of updates in the existing services and making use of state-of-the-art technologies. T

The GreeNET Hub (<u>http://hub.greenet.ea.gr</u>) is the new point of access of the GreeNET tools and services. The Hub makes use of the outcomes of projects that have already worked on this direction, such as the Inspiring Science Education (ISE, http://www.inspiringscience.eu), the Green Learning Network (GLN; www.greenlearningnetwork.eu) and the Open Discovery Space (ODS; http://opendiscoveryspace.eu). The contributions of the aforementioned projects allowed an elaborated version of the GreeNET tools to be available to their potential end users, offering enhanced usability and maximizing the user experience.



Figure 6.1: The GreeNET Hub home page

The main component of the GreeNET Hub is the GreeNET Inventory, which is available through the home page of the Hub. The concept is identical to the one described in chapter 2; this means that through the GreeNET Inventory, the users are guided into

- searching and retrieving quality green OER and Best Practices;
- getting ideas for the organization of interactive school activities making use of these resources;



- authoring best practices for their classroom by implementing the aforementioned ideas;
- creating their own school portal for sharing their own resources.

The following images show the corresponding sections of the GreeNET Hub.

Generate l	deas			
Do you seek new and crea Green Ideas Project is an i environmental issues. Gre individuals to create new o	tive ways to trigger your stude dea-generating platform, base en Ideas Project is based on A opportunities and solve proble	ents' creativity and lead them d on the principles of design gro-Know's format for organ ims of the environmental sec	on how to generate and des thinking that aims at spurrin izing green events that capita ttor.	ign their ideas? Ig creativity and fostering innovation on Ilize on the collective brainpower of inspired
Phases	Sub-Phases	Components		
Plant Seeds Cultivate Ideas Blossom & Thrive	Cluster Notes Identify Problem Brainstorm on Solutions Grow Ideas Outline Idea Develop Idea Present Idea Present Idea Refine Idea Incubate Idea Open Idea to the World	Hack/App Business Idea 3D-Model Making Story-Teiling Art	Inspiring Speeches	
	Idea Pathway Crea	tor		
A	gro-Know's Sharing On	line Portal		
Cultivate Ideas Blossom & Thrive	Solutions Grow Ideas Outline Idea Develop Idea Present Idea Refine Idea Incubate Idea Open Idea to the World Idea Pathway Crea sgro-Know's Sharing On and engaging workshops that use th	Hack/App Business 3D-Model Making Story-Teiling Art tor ter texplore ways in which gree e design-thinking approach	an innovation may be empow to innovate new ideas with at	ered by education and technology. They a tionable next steps. Within Green Ideas,

Figure 6.2: The "Generate Ideas" section of the GreeNET Hub

HOME	DISCOVER OER	GENERATE IDEAS	DESIGN ACTIVITIES	CREATE YOUR PORTAL
Home / D	lo you want to design	activities that live up to	the standards of a Best Pr	actice?
Do Bes	you wan st Practic	t to desig :e?	n activities	that live up to the standards of a
GreeNE qualitat	T Project has develop tive activities as well a	ped an essential criteria as control the quality of t	checklist targeted to supp the plethora of activities ye	ort activities centred on Environmental Education that can guide you to design ou came across online.
With ou	r Best Practice Autho	oring Tool you will be abl	e to follow a specific path	for the design your activities and share them with the rest of the educational world!
Log in				
Best Pra	actice Criteria			
Check y	our green activity qui	ickly here!		
1. Relat 2. Inter 3. Relev 4. Base 5. Conn 6. Use c 7. Choo 8. Enha 9. Supp 10. Ada	ion to a green topic a disciplinarity rance to the daily life d on accurate and fac ection to professions of the features for ene sing a variation of en ncement of students' ort of the developme ptability of the progra	nd curriculum of students ctual professional expert in the green labour ma quiry-based science edu iquiry learning '(CT skills int of social skills amme	ise rket cation	
dest_pr	actice_authoring_too	l_manual.pdf		

Figure 6.3: The "Design Activities" section of the GreeNET Hub



Users are also provided with a login link, which can be used for accessing the admin interface of the GreeNET Best Practice Authoring Tool (inventory).

Creat	e your portal
chool Portal	Generator gives you the opportunity to join in and take advantage of its services which offer a wide range of green collections.
n three simpl o use the Sch	z steps you can create your own green OER portal, customised to offer the educational collections of your choice. Watch the following video on hov ool Portal Generator.
Cohool Do	rtal Congratar Video Tutorial
admin +	
-	
Ramping 1	
Spants are also	et generaties es et faine (non), habos, accordes, pol valorentes.
CAN see the	
Canoni para	
Refer plan to p	a provide a frequencia de la constancia de
t - mail address	
A unit a road o	Although the main hand the descence of the users to the address. The k and address and wells and with the descent of an address and the users and the address
Pacamet	a Annalasia and
Casher part	
To other over	
P. Anto competition P. Anto competition The characteristic	

Figure 6.4: The "Create your Portal" section of the GreeNET Hub

The integration of these pages under the GreeNET Hub "umbrella" in the project website not only allows their access through the project's website but on top of that creates a feeling of "Tool Section" for those interested in using the tools described in these pages.



## 7 Conclusions

This document aims to provide an overview of the GreeNET set of tools:

- 1. The GreeNET Inventory
- 2. The Best Practice Authoring Tool
- 3. The GreeNET Moodle instance

These tools aim to support potential end users in creating, storing, indexing and retrieving quality educational resources in the form of Best Practices, OER and courses. The GreeNET inventory provides users with a number of options that aim to boost the creativity of teachers and other types of educators, by introducing them to the concepts of Best Practice-based interactive activities and the Green Ideas series of events. It also provides all the necessary information to everyone wishing to author Best Practices or retrieve quality green OER from the GreeNET discovery space. The Best Practice Authoring Tool allows its users to create Best Practices through an easy to use interface, making use of existing green OER available through the GreeNET discovery space (a part of the GreeNET inventory) or through other sources of quality OER. Last but not least, the GreeNET Moodle instance allows users to develop courses and make them available to their students, using high quality OER and Best Practices as essential parts of their courses.

It is important to mention that in order to ensure the interoperability between the different systems and ensure their wide application, all these tools are based on widely used open source platforms. More specifically, the GreenNET inventory has been built on the Drupal platform (<u>https://www.drupal.org</u>), one of the most widely used content management platforms. Drupal is supported by a large user community, including developers, system administrators and content experts and supports a large number of interoperability and extensibility options.

The Best Practice Authoring Tool is based on the widely used, open source Omeka platform (http://omeka.org), which has already been used in other instances for serving different types of applications. Examples of these applications are the Agricultural Learning Repository Tool (AgLR), which has been developed and used by the Organic.Lingua project as its main repository and metadata authoring tool and the Pathway Authoring Tool of the Natural Europe project.

The GreeNET Moodle instance is based on the Moodle platform (<u>https://moodle.org</u>), a widely used learning platform designed to provide educators, administrators and learners with a single robust, secure and integrated system to create personalised learning environments. Moodle is also supported by an ever-growing user community and supports various interoperability and customization options.

The use of open source tools and platforms provides a number of advantages over commercial software and ensures, among others, constant support from the user community, access to various customization options, use of existing standard file formats (avoiding proprietary ones) as well as minimum (or even) no cost for related to licensing.



## Annex A: School Portal Generator Manual

Available as a separate file



## Annex B: Best Practice Authoring Tool manual

Available as a separate file